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          1  MANHATTAN DELEGATION SPEAKOUT

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I want to thank

          3  everybody for coming. My name is Christine Quinn, I

          4  am a City Council Member from this area of Chelsea

          5  and Hell's Kitchen. I am joined by Council Member,

          6  from the Lower East Side, Council Member Margarita

          7  Lopez, also Grammercy Park and other places.

          8                 This is the fourth forum that the

          9  Manhattan Delegation has had in about the past seven

         10  to ten days, we are expecting more members of the

         11  delegation to come. We have had one on the lower

         12  east side, one in Harlem, one in Washington Heights,

         13  one on the upper west side yesterday, this one,

         14  there is another one on the upper west side early

         15  next week.

         16                 What happens is that in the

         17  delegation meeting we were talking about how we best

         18  could respond to the tragic shooting of Amadou

         19  Diallo and reach out to the people in this borough

         20  to find out the experiences that they are having,

         21  you know, with police, both positive and negative,

         22  but if we could hear directly from people what they

         23  have experienced in an effort to better inform our

         24  legislative and oversight work.

         25                 Just so you know, these hearings are
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          2  actually official hearings of the City Council and

          3  the name plates are from our very helpful

          4  Sergeant-At-Arms. The testimony people are giving is

          5  being taped, so say your name before you testify.

          6  Also, the testimony from this and all the other

          7  hearings is going to be complied into a report that

          8  will be presented to the City Council by the

          9  Manhattan Delegation, and out of which we hope will

         10  come up with some legislative ideas for how to

         11  improve these community relations.

         12                 What we are going to do is, most of

         13  the Council members, me and Margarita and others

         14  when they get here, we are just going to listen, we

         15  are not going to ask a lot of questions. We are

         16  giving everybody three minutes, and when the time

         17  ends we will ring a bell. And really, you know, what

         18  we hope is that all the people could sign in because

         19  then we will be able to get back to you a copy of

         20  the report and also to tell you what we did with the

         21  various information we got and from people across

         22  the borough.

         23                 As well as the forum we are having on

         24  the upper west side later in the week, we are also

         25  going to be having a forum in April focusing on
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          2  college students and young people and their

          3  attraction to the police, so if that is something

          4  you are interested in, we don't have a date yet, but

          5  please let us know.

          6                 I did want to make two quick

          7  announcements before I turn it over to Council

          8  Member Lopez. One is I want to sort of remind

          9  everybody about the demonstration tomorrow morning

         10  at 9:00 at the public library, and also to tell

         11  folks that myself and Senator Duane and others are

         12  organizing a picket and civil disobedience on

         13  Thursday at One Police Plaza. We are working with

         14  the Reverend Sharpton and there is going to be an

         15  11:30 legal picket and then people who want to

         16  participate in civil disobedience, like Council

         17  Member Lopez and Council Member Perkins yesterday,

         18  will get arrested at noon. So, there is a flyer in

         19  the back that unfortunately says February 18th, we

         20  really meant March 18th, so if you will take that

         21  and please give us a call.

         22                 I also want to recognize that we have

         23  a representative here today from State Senator Tom

         24  Duane's office, who is up in Albany, a

         25  representative from Assemblymember Deborah Putcof
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          2  (phonetic) from Albany and a representative from

          3  (phonetic) from Comptroller Alan Hevesi's office.

          4                 Margarita.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I am going to

          6  ask the public to forgive me for a minute, for the

          7  benefit of the Latino people I am going to speak in

          8  Spanish for a little and then I will proceed with

          9  English.

         10                 (In Spanish). Thank you very much.

         11                 I want to thank the media from the

         12  Latino community who has been covering the gay

         13  issues in our communities, and I think that is a

         14  great thing and I want to thank them for that. Thank

         15  you.

         16                 I just want to say I am so glad to be

         17  here. I am a little tired, forgive me if I am not

         18  very attentive, but I will do my best.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I also just

         21  want to announce that we have folks from the

         22  Civilian Complaint Review Board here tonight in the

         23  back row, and also forms and stuff from the CCRB so

         24  that if you want to speak to them or want to get

         25  information.
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          2                 We are also joined by staff from the

          3  City Council Investigations Unit, who have been

          4  coming to all of our hearings in an effort to help

          5  compile information so that the Council beyond the

          6  Manhattan Delegation will be able to address this

          7  issue legislatively.

          8                 Just in advance, I want to thank

          9  everybody who speaks. It has been very helpful and

         10  actually quite moving as we have heard people

         11  throughout the entire borough talking about the

         12  interactions they have had with police in their

         13  neighborhoods and other places in the City. We have

         14  been joined by Council Member Gifford Miller, who is

         15  a Council member from the upper east side.

         16                 Did you want to say something?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: I don't have

         18  anything particular to say, other than I am glad to

         19  see a lot of people are here and I am pleased to be

         20  here. I think that the forums we have had all over

         21  the borough have been an extraordinary success for

         22  me personally in that it has given me and I think my

         23  colleagues from the Council a broader understanding

         24  of the depth of this issue, the seriousness of the

         25  issue and the many facets of the problem, and also
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          2  it has been successful I have found in that the

          3  people have been able to come and participate in the

          4  forums.

          5                 The only thing I would like to

          6  underline at this time is that I think this is just

          7  the first step in a process of addressing this

          8  issue, and not the end. We can't just listen and

          9  then feel that we have done what we could, we need

         10  to make sure that we address this problem in terms

         11  of finding a solution. And I look forward to working

         12  with my colleagues on the Council, Council Member

         13  Lopez and Council Member Quinn and Council Member

         14  Perkins, who has joined us, and I am sure Council

         15  Member Michels also feels the necessity to say

         16  something similar to what I have said. I look

         17  forward to hearing from all of you.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Stanley, do you

         19  want to say anything?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: No, I am here

         21  to listen.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Bill and

         23  Margarita are both fresh from Sarah Razio's

         24  (phonetic) today with Mayor Dinkins.

         25                 Did you want to say something?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Sure. Good

          3  evening. You should congratulate yourself for taking

          4  the time to come and share with us some of the

          5  concerns that you have in terms of police community

          6  relations.

          7                 This is, as I am sure you know, a

          8  part of the series of Speakouts that we are having

          9  throughout the Borough, and then on the 22nd of this

         10  month, which is Monday, we are going to have some

         11  oversight hearings at the City Council focusing

         12  specifically on the Street Crimes Unit, that will be

         13  the focus on the controversy, and a source of a lot

         14  of the actions of police brutality and excessive

         15  police force.

         16                 So, you are providing us with

         17  significant information that will add to what we

         18  hope to receive at our hearing and eventually

         19  translate into some legislation, some new

         20  procedures, and maybe some budgetary suggestions, as

         21  well.

         22                 Thank you very much. I am glad to be

         23  here.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: If you want to

         25  testify, please fill out one of these sheets, slips.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Thank you for

          3  being here today. As you know, this is a fact

          4  finding hearing, and it is important for us to learn

          5  from you. We historically read stories, but to know

          6  firsthand your experience is very important to us.

          7  We do want to translate it and do something to stop

          8  what we have been told is going on.

          9                 Bill and I are going to have a

         10  hearing at the end of this week, Thursday, up in my

         11  community, up in Riverside Church. We have been

         12  doing this all over Manhattan, and I have heard

         13  rumors that are telling me it is going to go on all

         14  over the City. But we in Manhattan are used to doing

         15  things first. And we are very happy to have you here

         16  and welcome you here. Please feel free to express

         17  yourselves without fear of intimidation whatsoever,

         18  because we will make sure that you are protected.

         19  Thank you very much.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: The first

         21  speaker is Jay Walker, and Jay followed by Richard

         22  Spedale.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Can I also say,

         24  everyone talk into the microphone. And we are

         25  interested in knowing if you personally suffered any
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          2  brutality, any police misconduct, I would appreciate

          3  when you speak if you would indicate if that

          4  happened to you, or you witnessed any incident of

          5  that kind.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 MR. WALKER: Thank you. I have had an

          8  experience with the police. I was arrested last

          9  night, however, was not treated poorly at that time.

         10  I think that that shows some measure of the police

         11  trying to wane in their worse instincts.

         12                 But I think that when you are talking

         13  about the situation of the police, and the

         14  relationship, especially of minority communities,

         15  you have to get back to this whole war on drugs

         16  thing, and the way that the sentences for drugs that

         17  tend to be more used in poor, minority communities

         18  compared to the sentences for drugs that tend to be

         19  used in more upscale communities. This war on drugs

         20  is ending up being a war on our poor neighborhoods.

         21  These task forces and special operations forces, it

         22  sounds like they are a military group invading our

         23  homes and our neighborhoods, they foster the feeling

         24  people have of the police and feeling as though the

         25  police are the enemy. And we need to start dealing
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          2  with the fundamental issues of the way we deal with

          3  the sentencing, and the drug laws, those sort of

          4  things, if you are ever going to start to get to the

          5  bottom of what we are talking about.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

          7                 Richard. We have also been joined by

          8  Council Member Ronnie Eldridge.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I am

         10  delighted to be here. I mean, I am sorry to be here,

         11  but --

         12                 MR. Spedale. My name is Richard

         13  Spedale. I live on the upper west side.

         14                 I was a participant in the Matthew

         15  Shepard political funeral on October 19th, 1998, and

         16  I was not an organizer of it, but showed up as most

         17  other New Yorkers did. And I witnessed several

         18  accounts of brutality against New Yorkers, peaceful

         19  demonstrators, and I will actually defer to Marcie

         20  Elias from Fried, Frank, Harris, Shriver and

         21  Jacobson to go over the umbrella of police brutality

         22  issues.

         23                 But I will say for my own part that I

         24  attended the entire vigil and after it was over, I

         25  attempted to watch a police press conference being
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          2  held across the park, across from Madison Park, 25th

          3  and Broadway, and when I attempted to stand on the

          4  sidewalk and watch this police press conference, a

          5  commanding officer, Michael Collins, approached me

          6  and ordered me to leave the sidewalk. And his reason

          7  for asking me to leave the sidewalk was that I

          8  didn't have a press pass.

          9                 Now, at the time that I was standing

         10  on the sidewalk, there was absolutely nothing

         11  quartered off, there was no area of the sidewalk

         12  essentially designated for the press whatsoever, and

         13  it was only when he saw me standing there with my

         14  sign from the political funeral that he was almost

         15  just about to speak to the press and then he came

         16  over to ask me to leave. And when I refused to

         17  leave, because I stated my First Amendment right to

         18  be there on the sidewalk, he then ordered me

         19  arrested, and I spent over 20 hours in jail, for

         20  purely standing on a sidewalk.

         21                 Now, what went through my mind at

         22  that point was that I felt like I was living a

         23  parallel universe. I was in New York, I almost felt

         24  like I was in a third world country where people

         25  don't have any rights, and I moved to New York City
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          2  because I wanted to live in a place of freedom and,

          3  you know, and that has evaporated right before our

          4  very eyes. And I think the City Council has the

          5  responsibility to take this Mayor to task, I mean to

          6  really -- I hold Mayor Giuliani responsible for

          7  that. He appointed Commissioner Howard Safir, and

          8  the Police Commissioner ordered the police to

          9  basically brutalize many participants at that vigil

         10  and also to order my arrest.

         11                 So, this goes right to the Mayor's

         12  Office and I think we all know that Commissioner

         13  Safir is a puppet for the Mayor, and I go out on a

         14  limb in saying that, but I hold Mayor Giuliani

         15  responsible and I want the City Council to hold the

         16  Mayor responsible.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         19                 Next is Tim Santamour, followed by

         20  Marcie Elias, followed by Melissa Woods.

         21                 MR. SANTAMOUR: Okay, I will start

         22  with my subtle incidences of police interaction.

         23                 The first was an arrest that I took

         24  at the St. Patrick's Day Parade, not in the morning,

         25  but as a marcher in the parade, we got the banner at
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          2  61st Street and were promptly arrested by the

          3  police.

          4                 The seven of us that were arrested

          5  were taken to the Harlem Precinct for processing,

          6  and in the Harlem Precinct we were the targets of

          7  verbal abuse, it was totally sexist of a political

          8  nature, condemning us for supporting -- condemning

          9  us for claiming that we were supporters of the IRA,

         10  and these were like people that were not only New

         11  York City police but were police officers from

         12  Ireland that were allowed into the holding area

         13  where we were being held, where they should not have

         14  been, and they were drunk, but still the New York

         15  City police allowed them in to make these comments

         16  at us.

         17                 The second time I had an interaction

         18  with the police was at the 10 Year Anniversary on

         19  Wall Street. I was arrested as part of the civil

         20  disobedience action at the entrance to the Wall

         21  Street, at Broad and Wall, and at that time I was

         22  handcuffed by an officer, and handcuffed so tightly

         23  that my hand immediately started to tingle and I

         24  asked the police officer if he couldn't loosen the

         25  cuffs because I was having a problem, I did not
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          2  resist arrest, I walked to the van, and at no time

          3  did the officer respond to me that he would loosen

          4  my cuffs.

          5                 When I was put into the van, I was

          6  put into the van face down in the seat by the

          7  arresting officer, an Officer Fludd, 13066. I will

          8  never forget his name or badge number. As we were

          9  riding down to where we were going to be held and

         10  processed, he continued to keep my face pressed into

         11  the seat, would not allow me to sit up, he kept his

         12  arm on my back, his elbow in my back with his billy

         13  club.

         14                 The third time I had an interaction

         15  was at the Matthew Shepard political funeral. I was

         16  one of the people that did help organize the

         17  political funeral and was one of the very few

         18  marshals that was not arrested.

         19                 At that action the police definitely

         20  targeted marshals for brutality and arrest.

         21                 My incident happened at the corner of

         22  43rd and Fifth Avenue, when I saw that two other

         23  marshals were attempting to get down 43rd Street,

         24  the dispersed the crowd and sent them to 43rd

         25  Street, why who we don't know, but they wanted those
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          2  people out of there because we knew it was a

          3  dangerous place to be, and we did not want them to

          4  become the targets of violence. We were not allowed

          5  to go in and disperse people, and for those of you

          6  who know, those people were the targets of horses

          7  charging into them, of cops swinging billy clubs.

          8                 At that time I was stopped from

          9  proceeding on the street -- (bell sounded) -- and I

         10  hope the Council will let me go on because I have a

         11  couple of incidents.

         12                 I was unallowed to go down the

         13  street. I was grabbed by the back, I was thrown onto

         14  the sidewalk. I was not arrested. I ended up

         15  spraining my wrist and I had just gotten out of

         16  physical therapy for my wrist, it was weeks of work.

         17  And also I was just very traumatized by that event.

         18                 The next event that I was harassed by

         19  the police was a couple of weeks ago I was on my way

         20  into the Club Finale up on 10th and 27th, and I

         21  stopped on the way in and spoke with an

         22  African-American male outside of the club. As soon

         23  as I stepped away from the African-American male the

         24  police officers came across three lanes of traffic,

         25  got out of their cars and went towards my friends
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          2  and I, and they were saying that they were the

          3  police and asking us to stop, and what we had been

          4  doing with this African-American male. To me the

          5  only thing that we did there was speak to him and we

          6  were being targets for who we associated with on our

          7  way into the club.

          8                 And lastly was last night at the

          9  political funeral for Billy Jack, Amadou Diallo and

         10  other targets of violence. Once again the police

         11  showed they are rude, inconsistent, not forthcoming

         12  with information and just they basically try to

         13  cause confusion at political demonstrations to try

         14  to silence people who oppose them.

         15                 My last comment that I would like to

         16  make is regarding the CCRB.

         17                 The CCRB to me is useless. It is a

         18  system that is set up where you get to admit that

         19  you have been a victim of police brutality, but yet

         20  there is no true follow-through by the CCRB. They

         21  need to be disbanded and let go, or they need to be

         22  strengthened by the Council.

         23                 Just one last comment. There are a

         24  lot of people from the queer community who have come

         25  to this meeting because they are engaged in
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          2  activities such as sex trade workers and drug use

          3  and they are not going to come and speak to the

          4  Council for fear of reprisal. But the Council really

          5  has to take a look at what the police are doing to

          6  sex trade workers and drug users in this City, it is

          7  criminal. They are not getting health care, they are

          8  being harassed at needle exchanges, they are being

          9  harassed even when they are not working or they are

         10  being harassed when they are going out to do

         11  outreach work to try to get people off the streets

         12  and into treatment and such.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Just a quick

         15  question for clarification.

         16                 The precinct that you identified in

         17  the beginning was the Harlem Precinct?

         18                 MR. SANTAMOUR: It was the 25th, I

         19  believe.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: The 25th

         21  Precinct?

         22                 MR. SANTAMOUR: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay. That is

         24  East Harlem. Is that where it was?

         25                 MR. SANTAMOUR: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay. Thank

          3  you very much. I represent part of that precinct.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I just want to

          5  remind folks who have just come in, for folks in the

          6  back, there are some seats up in the front here. And

          7  we have also been joined by our Manhattan Borough

          8  President Virginia Fields' Office, Derek McCall.

          9                 Marcie Elias, Melissa Woods and

         10  Andrew Berman, representing Tom Duane.

         11                 MS. ELIAS: Good evening, Council

         12  Members.

         13                 I am Marcie Elias, I am an attorney

         14  at Fried, Frank, Harris, Shriver and Jacobson. My

         15  firm, in conjunction with the New York Civil

         16  Liberties Union represent a number of individuals

         17  who were present at the Matthew Shepard vigil and

         18  were victims of or witnesses to police brutality and

         19  other misconduct.

         20                 What we are doing for these people,

         21  we are filing complaints with the Civilian Complaint

         22  Review Board and to date we have over 70 allegations

         23  of police misconduct and brutality involving 53

         24  members of the Police Department who have been

         25  identified by their name or badge number.
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          2                 We also have a number of other

          3  allegations against other officers where it was

          4  impossible to obtain their name or gather

          5  information.

          6                 I just wanted to give you a brief

          7  overview of the vigil events and provide some

          8  examples that our clients have provided to us.

          9                 As many of you know, the vigil

         10  commenced at Plaza Hotel, there were 5,000 people

         11  there and the Chief Police Officer, refused to

         12  negotiate with march organizers to get the crowd

         13  safely down Fifth Avenue. Instead he insisted that

         14  the entire crowd disband and go home or everybody

         15  would be arrested.

         16                 That was obviously impossible. The

         17  crowd started proceeding down Fifth Avenue and the

         18  commanding officers ordered the arrest of the first

         19  wave of people which were the march organizers and

         20  the legal observers which effectively got the crowd

         21  of 5,000 people without any leadership structure,

         22  which was totally chaotic.

         23                 At many points on Fifth Avenue the

         24  police attempted to block the march and disperse it,

         25  and herded traffic west down the side streets and
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          2  actually drove some of the crowd into oncoming

          3  traffic on Sixth Avenue, and then upon realizing the

          4  mistake, they diverted people back east down Fifth

          5  Avenue.

          6                 43rd Street they again blocked the

          7  crowd, walked them onto 43rd Street, set up

          8  barricades on each side of 43rd Street, Fifth Avenue

          9  and Sixth Avenue. And it was at this point where a

         10  crowd of ten to 15 officers on horseback came

         11  charging into the crowd of innocent vigil

         12  participants, seriously injuring a number if people

         13  and just creating an entirely chaotic situation.

         14                 The march was able to proceed down

         15  Fifth Avenue, and as Richard mentioned, a number of

         16  people were arrested merely for standing on public

         17  sidewalks. I imagine the police did not want too

         18  many participants present during that police press

         19  conference.

         20                 A number of individuals were detained

         21  on a bus, 19 people were put on a City bus without

         22  being told what they were arrested for. They were

         23  kept there for six hours, a number of them were

         24  forced to publicly urinate in plastic bottles

         25  because they were not permitted to leave the bus.
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          2                 They were released ultimately without

          3  being charged with any crime, nor were they even

          4  told what they were arrested for. People who were

          5  arrested and put in jail were deprived of food and

          6  water for up to 24 hours, denied bathroom access for

          7  up to ten hours, and probably most outrageously a

          8  number of people were deprived of clinical

          9  life-sustaining HIV medication on the bus, in jail,

         10  just throughout the course of the evening. The

         11  police command structure just demonstrated a

         12  complete ignorance as to the need for this

         13  medication, and I think of all of the things that

         14  took place that night, the depravement of HIV was

         15  the most egregious.

         16                 That's about all I have to say on

         17  this.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Council Member

         19  Michels has a question.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Ms. Elias, I

         21  am very pleased to see such a prestigious law firm

         22  such as yours involved in this, I think it really

         23  adds to the genuine authenticity of what has

         24  happened.

         25                 What I wanted to ask you was whether
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          2  or not anyone told you the police were viewing this,

          3  when it was actually going on, that they were, and

          4  they usually do do that, I would suggest that you

          5  would subpoena the videotape.

          6                 MS. ELIAS: There actually is a

          7  videotape. And we have made repeated requests of the

          8  Mayor's Office, Safir's Office, and we have received

          9  no response from them to give us the tape.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: That would

         11  help your case plenty if you had that. I think that

         12  would be subject to subpoena.

         13                 MS. ELIAS: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Did you FOIL to

         15  that?

         16                 MS. ELIAS: No, we have not.

         17                 As I said, what we have done is we

         18  filed affidavits with the CCRB, but I do agree that

         19  that tape would shed a lot of light on it.

         20                 I have a report that we prepared for

         21  a presentation that we made of the Board of the

         22  CCRB, and I would be happy to hand out copies of it

         23  to you, if you would like.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Did you request

         25  a Freedom of Information Act?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I just asked

          3  that.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Are you trying

          5  to do that?

          6                 MS. ELIAS: We are trying to get it

          7  right now from the Police Department, the CCRB has

          8  it in their possession.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: No, my question

         10  is, are you going to request under the Freedom of

         11  Information Act that particular videotape? Are you

         12  planning to do that?

         13                 MS. ELIAS: I am not sure what we are

         14  going to do about that right now.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay, thank

         16  you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: One more

         18  question.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Yes, Stanley,

         20  go ahead.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Is your firm

         22  planning a legal defeat against the City?

         23                 MS. ELIAS: We are not. As I said,

         24  right now our involvement is limited to continuing

         25  to file CCRB complaints on behalf of any individual
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          2  who is interested in having us do so.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: You are

          4  aware, and I am sure you have advised your clients

          5  that that is not mutually exclusive?

          6                 MS. ELIAS: Absolutely.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: They can file

          8  civil suits --

          9                 MR. ELIAS: Absolutely.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And assault.

         11                 MS. ELIAS: Absolutely.

         12                 And in fact we are working with a

         13  number of attorneys who are doing civil suits.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Thank you

         15  very much.

         16                 MS. ELIAS: Thank you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I also wanted

         18  just to let the other Council members of the

         19  Delegation know that the Gay and Lesbian

         20  Anti-Violence Project has their own videotapes of

         21  what happened that night. So, if any of you want

         22  copies of that I am sure they can provide them, just

         23  so you can get a picture of what happened.

         24                 Melissa Woods.

         25                 MS. WOODS: Hi. I am Melissa Woods and
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          2  I am here from the New York Civil Liberties Union.

          3  And to piggy-back what Marcie just told you, if

          4  there is anyone else who would like to file a CCRB

          5  complaint who was involved with the Matthew Shepard

          6  vigil to give me call me at the New York Civil

          7  Liberties Union, and that number is 344-3005, or you

          8  can call Marcie at Fried Frank.

          9                 I am just here to share with people

         10  that the New York Civil Liberties Union, along with

         11  ECLU, has put out these cards that explain to you

         12  what your rights are and what you should do, and I

         13  am going to leave them back there so you can take

         14  them for yourself or your friends.

         15                 Also, if you are stopped by the

         16  police and want to know what your options are, what

         17  you can do about that, you can also call us and we

         18  can explain your rights to you and what those

         19  options are, 344-3005.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         21                 Next is Andrew Berman, representing

         22  State Senator Tom Duane.

         23                 After that is Kristi -- and I am

         24  sorry, I just can't make out the last name. From the

         25  International -- oh, okay, you know who you are.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            28

          1  MANHATTAN DELEGATION SPEAKOUT

          2                 And after that we have Paul Langland.

          3                 MR. BERMAN: Hi. My name is Andrew

          4  Berman, and I do work for State Senator Tom Duane. I

          5  am here tonight both to listen to what everybody has

          6  to say, and also to speak as an individual to an

          7  instance that I encountered of police misconduct

          8  about two years ago.

          9                 I was arrested along with an

         10  out-of-town guest who was visiting me. It was his

         11  second day in the United States. It was a bit of a

         12  rude welcome to this country. He was here from

         13  England, where the kind of thing that I will

         14  describe sort of don't happen so much.

         15                 We both had to spend several days in

         16  Bronx Criminal Court to get our charges dropped,

         17  which they eventually were because the judge found

         18  them to be baseless.

         19                 It was a terrible, terrible

         20  experience, but one of the things that struck me

         21  most about the experience was actually how much

         22  worse it could have been if it was somebody else in

         23  the same circumstances I was in, luckily because of

         24  some of the things I had access to, what could have

         25  been an incredibly awful experience was merely
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          2  really bad.

          3                 Basically what happened was that my

          4  out-of-town guest and I, I wanted to take him to see

          5  parts of New York. We went to the neighborhood that

          6  I grew up in, we went to visit my parents house, who

          7  weren't home, it was in the middle of the day on a

          8  work day, and before we left the building I wanted

          9  to take him to see the view from the top of the

         10  roof, the building that I grew up in, the place when

         11  I was a kid growing up I often sort of went up

         12  there, it was sort of a place that was kind of a

         13  retreat, wonderful view, things like that. It was

         14  sort of very common for people in the building to

         15  do. I had actually been there just a couple of weeks

         16  earlier, my parents, as I said, still live there,

         17  they sort of often do the same thing.

         18                 We were up there for about five

         19  minutes, and just as we were about to leave, we were

         20  kind of just taking some pictures of the view of the

         21  City, he wanted to bring them back with him from

         22  England. All of a sudden bursting through the door

         23  of the stairway onto the roof were two men with guns

         24  drawn at us, saying get back from the edge of the

         25  roof and put your hands behind your head.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            30

          1  MANHATTAN DELEGATION SPEAKOUT

          2                 My immediate reaction was oh my God,

          3  I am going to be killed. It became clear within a

          4  couple of seconds that these guys were cops, to

          5  which my first reaction was okay, it's not like we

          6  are going to be killed, little did I realize the

          7  problem was just beginning.

          8                 They said, you know, what are you

          9  doing here? What's in your bag? And all of these

         10  things. I said, you know, you are welcome to look,

         11  this is a camera, taking pictures, I am showing my

         12  friend, this is the building I grew up in, my

         13  parents live here, et cetera. They were having none

         14  of it. I didn't happen to have picture ID on me,

         15  though I did have identification on me that this

         16  didn't have a picture. I also had my cards from work

         17  which showed that I worked for at that time City

         18  Council member Tom Duane, where it didn't really

         19  mean anything to them.

         20                 I told them that I had the keys to my

         21  apartment, and if they wanted to go inside they

         22  would see my picture over the mantle, to prove that

         23  I had lived there. They would have none of this.

         24                 They put handcuffs on both of us,

         25  handcuffed us behind our backs and led me out, took
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          2  me down the elevator, led me to the building here, I

          3  am happy to say, maybe because this was in the

          4  middle of the day, I didn't run into anybody who I

          5  sort of grew up with. You know, it is not really the

          6  place where you want to have a conversation, oh,

          7  what have you been up to. We were taken to jail, and

          8  we were actually initially put in two different jail

          9  cells. And as I said, my sort of out-of-town guest

         10  who is two days in the country, comes from a place

         11  where police officers don't even carry guns, it was

         12  an incredibly serious experience for him. I had to

         13  really struggle with the officers to convince them

         14  to put him in the same cell as me.

         15                 Because I did not have picture ID

         16  they were not going to release either of us. They

         17  said the one way they would that is if I was who I

         18  claimed I was, if they called my place of

         19  employment, they would vouge for my identification,

         20  then they would let me go.

         21                 Now, luckily working for who I work

         22  for that was actually not a problem. My boss was

         23  very concerned that I was arrested, but it was not

         24  something that was going to jeopardize my position.

         25  Many other people really would not have such a
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          2  luxury.

          3                 Basically we were given some wrong

          4  information by the cops about when we needed to go

          5  to court to try to get the charge dismissed. Again,

          6  because I am fortunate with resources I had access

          7  to and actually now Council Member Christine Quinn

          8  at the time was able to help provide me with a

          9  lawyer who accompanied me to court, I would not

         10  really have been able to afford one on my own, nor

         11  on my own really have known how to fully advocate

         12  for myself to get the charges dismissed. But with

         13  that assistance we were able to get the charges

         14  dismissed, the judge just sort of threw them out.

         15  They were clearly baseless, but we did have to spend

         16  several days -- he was here for just a week, much of

         17  his vacation was spent in Bronx Criminal Court,

         18  which was a terrible experience.

         19                 But you know, as I said, the one

         20  thing I was struck by is that, you know, if I didn't

         21  work for who I worked for, if I was unemployed, if I

         22  was a person of color, if I was homeless, if I was

         23  many other things, the experience could have been so

         24  much worse, and I am sure there are many other

         25  people out there who have had those experiences, and
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          2  not that I didn't notice before, but this just sort

          3  of really illustrated to me that there is the tenor

          4  that has been taken on by some police in this City

          5  which is completely inappropriate, and sort of a

          6  lock them up, make as many arrests as possible

          7  because that is what we are here to do, and I think

          8  my experience shows that it happens to a lot of

          9  people.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Andrew, can I

         11  just ask a question? Were they plainclothes

         12  officers? And do you know what unit they were from?

         13  Like Street Crimes or --

         14                 MR. BERMAN: They were plainclothes

         15  officers that I believe they were just local

         16  officers at that precinct because they took me back

         17  to the local precinct and they seemed to know the

         18  people there.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Can you share

         20  what was the charges that they charged you with?

         21                 MR. BERMAN: Trespassing.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Trespassing.

         23                 MR. BERMAN: Towards the end we were

         24  able to prove to the judge it was baseless.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.
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          2                 MR. THOMESLEAH: My name is Kristi

          3  Thomesleah. I am from the Internet for Access

          4  Center, and I am also loosely affiliated or have

          5  connections to a group Public Positive Health

          6  Clinic. I know people who work there.

          7                 I have been lucky enough not to have

          8  any run-ins with the cops, but let me point out the

          9  fact that I initially wanted to speak because there

         10  are no transgendered people, or very few

         11  transgendered people here, who are basically working

         12  on 14th Street. We had a Speakout not too long ago,

         13  where people were here who were speaking about their

         14  own experiences with the police, including rape. I

         15  have talked to people who have been raped by cops.

         16  And because of the fact that they have worked in the

         17  sex trade, and they know that these girls are

         18  working there, but they know they are not going to

         19  do anything to them. And I think that in order for

         20  this community to be here at something like this,

         21  there has to be an extra effort to go to educate

         22  people, especially like groups who are more

         23  connected to them, like Positive Health Clinic, and

         24  give an invitation to them specifically. If not,

         25  these voices are not going to be heard, and the
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          2  mentality will be going on and the murder will be

          3  going on.

          4                 I just wanted to make that statement.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I want to

          7  hear something that I am not sure I heard.

          8                 So, a special effort needs to be made

          9  to hear from the transgendered community?

         10                 MR. THOMESLEAH: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And that

         12  effort needs to be made possibly through

         13  organizations like yours, working in that community?

         14                 I wasn't sure if that is what you

         15  were saying.

         16                 MR. THOMESLEAH: Yes. Specifically

         17  organizations like the Positive Health Clinic.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Positive

         19  Health Clinic?

         20                 MR. THOMESLEAH: Yes, who have been

         21  working with a lot of transexual women in the

         22  community. There are not that many transexual men in

         23  the community, primarily the violence has been

         24  geared against transexual women.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Let me ask
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          2  you this. So, if such an effort was made, would it

          3  have to be in sort of an exclusive kind of context?

          4  Or would it matter if it was an audience where there

          5  were non-transexuals?

          6                 MR. THOMESLEAH: Of course it would be

          7  helpful. It would be like putting up a bulletin

          8  saying there is a Speakout, people are not going to

          9  come.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay.

         11                 MR. THOMESLEAH: We also have to have

         12  a specific leaflet, along with the general leaflets,

         13  geared towards that community, saying that

         14  transexual women and others, or however it is

         15  phrased, but it is this community that doesn't

         16  necessarily come out, if they feel like they are not

         17  included.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: We want to

         19  hear from all of you, and I appreciate, and I am

         20  sure my colleagues appreciate what you are

         21  suggesting and I apologize if there has been some

         22  shortcoming in our efforts, and maybe you can be

         23  helpful, because this is not the last one. I think

         24  it is at least going to be one other one on the 18th

         25  of the month, I don't know if that is enough time
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          2  for some outreach to be done. Is that enough time

          3  for some outreach to be done for your organization?

          4  To feed back certain information and assistance, as

          5  far as resources to reach out?

          6                 MR. THOMESLEAH: Well, I cannot speak

          7  for them specifically. There are not a lot of

          8  people.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So why don't

         10  we get in touch with you and see what we can do

         11  through you to hear from that part of the community.

         12                 MR. THOMESLEAH: Sure.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And I will

         14  have somebody reach out to you before I leave, or

         15  before we leave, okay?

         16                 MR. THOMESLEAH: Thank you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Paul Langland,

         18  followed by Bob Kohler, and after Bob it is Carrie

         19  Davis.

         20                 MR. LANGLAND: I very much appreciate

         21  your doing this. I am Paul Langland. I am not

         22  affiliated with anybody. I am a citizen, and I live

         23  on 21st Street, and I am just here because I have to

         24  be here, finally.

         25                 And I want to talk about two things:
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          2  I want to talk about my experience at the Matthew

          3  Shepard vigil, and I want to talk about Mayor

          4  Giuliani's relationship to the Diallo murder.

          5                 The thing that was clear to me at the

          6  Matthew Shepard vigil, first, was the event was far

          7  huger than anyone expected. The initial problem

          8  seemed to be, in sort of like the press of trying to

          9  keep people to stay on the Plaza sidewalk and not

         10  pour into Fifth Avenue, was oh my God, people are

         11  going to pour into Fifth Avenue. And the big fear

         12  was you can't close down Fifth Avenue.

         13                 However, the cops had already closed

         14  down Fifth Avenue with huge vans with open doors

         15  just waiting to shove everybody on in. It was like

         16  such an affront. It was like this is a grieving,

         17  said, sacred event that was violated and instantly

         18  escalated into an angry, furious mob.

         19                 Now, these are people from the

         20  corporate world, Fifth Avenue and 59th Street,

         21  people getting out out to work in thousand dollar

         22  suits, and look like you, a lot of gray hair. You

         23  know, everyone was curious whether these people

         24  poured into Fifth Avenue, like forget about this -

         25  and that is how it started, and that is why the City
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          2  ended up having to pay for God knows how many

          3  thousands of cops, double time, triple time,

          4  whatever they had to do and get all of their right

          5  gear out.

          6                 That was unnecessary. No, could our

          7  Mayor show up and say I am with you in your grief, I

          8  am with you at this horrible time? Did anyone from

          9  the City come and try to join this event with us?

         10  No. Just a bunch arrogant, that you fall onto this

         11  sidewalk, you are into the van. That was no way to

         12  handle the event, and that is why we had a big

         13  problem.

         14                 In terms of Giuliani and the Diallo

         15  situation, I lost it yesterday in terms of his

         16  reaction to the arrest of Mayor Dinkins.

         17                 It was unconscionable. Maybe we just

         18  have to keep saying this, okay, Mr. Miller, upper

         19  east-sider, gets gunned down in his lobby with no

         20  weapon by four black cops. Their lawyer says, oh,

         21  well, you know, he was making threatening moves.

         22  When are we going to get it? This was a horrible,

         23  outrageous tragedy, and it deserved the former Mayor

         24  of New York being there protesting, and I will be

         25  there from now on whenever I can.
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          2                 And the thing that is happening with

          3  Giuliani is he could feel that the Matthew Shepard

          4  situation that it started to feel like a general and

          5  his little army that he just loves sending out

          6  around the City.

          7                 Take a look at City Hall, it looks

          8  like a fortress. Police Plaza looks like a fortress.

          9  Are we living in a democracy anymore?

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thanks.

         12                 Bob.

         13                 MR. KOHLER: Hi. My name is Bob

         14  Kohler.

         15                 I attended both the Matthew Shepard

         16  funeral and the one last night, and my greatest fear

         17  is that a lot of people went away from last night's

         18  demonstration with a false sense of security.

         19                 The cops, in my opinion, were doing

         20  nothing but trying to lull us into that false sense

         21  of security last night.

         22                 Cops, in my experience, do not

         23  change. Thirty years ago when I was arrested during

         24  the Stonewall riots, I was chained to a radiator in

         25  the old Charles Street Precinct. I had my head split
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          2  open by a club, and my lover at the time who was

          3  arrested with me, happened to be Afro-American, he

          4  was chained to a radiator downstairs, but I was

          5  threatened with a billy club, and I quote New York's

          6  finest, "If you like black dicks so much, why don't

          7  we shove this up your ass."

          8                 So, this is 30 years later and we all

          9  know that is still happening. I was fortunate they

         10  didn't follow through.

         11                 So, please don't be lulled into a

         12  sense of security. When Giuliani leaves, we still

         13  have the Police Department, and nobody dislikes

         14  Guiliani more than I do, but it is not just

         15  Giuliani, it is something that is inherent in the

         16  Department, and something has to be done, I don't

         17  know what.

         18                 I would like to briefly address one

         19  other problem. There is a vigilante group that

         20  patrols, and if I step on some toes tonight I am

         21  sorry, that patrols the street. These people go out

         22  on weekends, these are just people, just Village

         23  people, they are not trained, they have elected

         24  themselves to police the neighborhood. They have a

         25  sanction of the Police Department, these people are
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          2  in all neighborhoods, and you have community boards

          3  and police saying, oh, they are wonderful, these

          4  patrols are helping us. There are a number of them

          5  in the village.

          6                 They harass gay people, they harass

          7  people of color, they harass the sex workers in the

          8  meat market, they go out in the middle of the night,

          9  they stop cars. You can be trying to park your car

         10  -- when I had a car I used to drive around the

         11  block sometimes seven, eight times, I wanted to be

         12  in that particular spot, I didn't want to go three

         13  blocks away. If you are doing that in the meat

         14  market, policing vigilantes are out, you are a john

         15  looking for a hooker and you better get out of the

         16  neighborhood. This is common.

         17                 I went out one night, because I

         18  wanted to know what I was talking about and marched

         19  with the -- I thought it was Brown Shirts. They ask

         20  people who were sitting on stoops if they live in

         21  the building. If they weren't living in the building

         22  they were told to get off the stoops.

         23                 There were two young black men

         24  talking on a corner --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Just for the
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          2  record, who are these so-called vigilantes?

          3                 MR. KOHLER: Block associations.

          4                 The one on Christopher Street is

          5  headed up by the Guardian Angels. If anyone has

          6  every heard Curtis Haywood speak on television, you

          7  know how frightening he is.

          8                 These people are not trained at all.

          9  I can say, okay, I am going to go out tonight, I am

         10  going to patrol that block. I am taking beer away

         11  from you, I am telling you to get off that stoop if

         12  you don't live there.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Wait. Wait.

         14  Wait.

         15                 I didn't understand this very thing

         16  of what you are saying. You are telling me that

         17  civilians how don't have a job with the Police

         18  Department or any enforcement agency, are going

         19  around in the neighborhood and telling people that

         20  they cannot do X, Y and Z?

         21                 MR. KOHLER: Absolutely.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: But this is

         23  happening right now?

         24                 MR. KOHLER: Right now.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay.
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          2                 MR. KOHLER: Thank you.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Thank you.

          4                 Carrie Davis is next, followed by

          5  Evelyn Foley, and after Evelyn Foley, Christopher

          6  Goeken.

          7                 MS. DAVIS: Hi. My name is Carrie

          8  Davis. I am a counselor at the Gender Identity

          9  Project, which is located in the Center.

         10                 I didn't come here to speak tonight,

         11  I came to listen to the stories of others, but I

         12  feel compelled to add my experience and my voice.

         13                 I represent a community that is

         14  continually overlooked by legislators and by nearly

         15  every City agency and service, but we are not

         16  overlooked by the police, and I am always approached

         17  by them and this is because of the way I look and

         18  who I am seen as. I have been asked for my ID by the

         19  police and I am asked if I am wanted by the police,

         20  and this is because of the way I look and who I am

         21  seen as.

         22                 I am not seen as a counselor, I am

         23  not seen as an HIV outreach worker, I am not seen as

         24  a taxpayer, the police see me another way. They see

         25  me as a street walker, which I have been, as a
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          2  homeless person, which I have also been, as a

          3  substance abuser, which I am privileged and

          4  fortunately have been able to avoid, and the police

          5  see me without privileges.

          6                 As a counselor for the Gender

          7  Identity Project with the Center I have heard

          8  countless stories of harassment, abuse and violence,

          9  distributed by the police, but those people could

         10  not be here tonight, they are not as privileged as I

         11  am and they cannot be here tonight because of the

         12  way they look who they see them as.

         13                 I did mention earlier, there has been

         14  no outreach to that community. We had a meeting at

         15  the Center here last week where we had 60 to 80

         16  transgendered, many of which were victims of

         17  violence by the police who told their stories, and

         18  they knew nothing about this meeting, and I don't

         19  know, but I believe that many would have been here

         20  tonight. So I urge you to listen to our stories and

         21  give credence to them because it is happening.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: The next

         24  speaker is Evelyn Foley. Let me just remind

         25  everybody, if there is anyone here who would like to
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          2  speak, you should fill out one of these forms that

          3  the Sergeant-at-Arms has.

          4                 Ms. Foley?

          5                 Christopher Goeken.

          6                 MR. GOEKEN: Good evening. My name is

          7  Chris Goeken, I am from the Gay and Lesbian

          8  Anti-Violence Project, and I am a community police

          9  advocate there. I do have some comments, and I am

         10  going to try to say them quickly.

         11                 As you have heard   from a lot of the

         12  people tonight, the police often mishandle cases

         13  that involve lesbian, gay, bisexual and

         14  transgendered and HIV positive people, and HIV

         15  negative people as well. I am going to provide a few

         16  examples.

         17                 From our experience, we are

         18  counseling a crime victim agency here in the City,

         19  we run a 24-hour hot line. There are some materials

         20  back here, on your way out you can grab and hear a

         21  little bit more about AVP.

         22                 For victims of gay bashing, the

         23  police all too frequently, don't properly classify

         24  the crime as bias. In one recent case the victim was

         25  beaten by a group of men who shouted faggot, they
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          2  jumped out of a van and beat him up. The attack was

          3  so brutal that he lost an eye, and yet the police

          4  refused to classify this as bias. We had to go to

          5  One Police Plaza and get the bias unit there to go

          6  to the precinct and tell them, no, this is a bias

          7  case.

          8                 The police often mistreat people who

          9  are transgendered here in the City. This ranges from

         10  street harassment to unlawful arrest to physical

         11  abuse.

         12                 And example, this is in Brooklyn, if

         13  a transgendered person is arrested, they don't put

         14  them in a cell, they chain them to a bench sort of

         15  outside the cells and make them sit there for 24 to

         16  48 hours until they arraigned. This is obviously

         17  problematic, if they need food, if they need water,

         18  if they need to go to the bathroom, they have to sit

         19  there and complain and complain for hours until

         20  finally someone hears them.

         21                 When a victim of same sex domestic

         22  violence calls the police, they stand a very good

         23  chance of being arrested themselves, and also the

         24  police are probably not going to take their crime

         25  very seriously. If it is a lesbian couple they call

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            48

          1  MANHATTAN DELEGATION SPEAKOUT

          2  it a cat fight. If it is a male couple, they say,

          3  oh, he man, what are you guys doing, you should

          4  settle this yourself, the police arrest both parties

          5  if they can't solve the problem themselves.

          6                 And this happens a lot, there are

          7  dual arrests, and even though this is against

          8  internal police policy.

          9                 We have a few reports of victims who

         10  are being arrested and being put in the same cells

         11  in the precinct, keeping the batterer in the same

         12  cell. This is obviously a tremendous problem.

         13                 MS. ELIAS: I just want to say, when I

         14  was at AVP that happened to one of my clients, and

         15  actually the police in the precinct came in and

         16  taunted the victim, telling them that they were

         17  going to never take the perp out.

         18                 MR. GOEKEN: That is one of the

         19  stories I haven't heard yet.

         20                 HIV positive arrestees have been

         21  denied access to time sensitive medication. You

         22  heard Marcie Elias talk a little bit about that

         23  before, during the Matthew Shepard vigil, but this

         24  is a long-standing problem. We have done a lot of

         25  work to try to get the City to change the policy and
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          2  they haven't budgeted on it.

          3                 What happens is they are arrested,

          4  they are held in detention and they are not taken to

          5  the hospital, their prescription medications are

          6  taken away from them.

          7                 We had a client who was mistakingly

          8  arrested, the police said, oh, sorry, we made a

          9  mistake but it was too late, because he missed

         10  several doses of his HIV medication. As a result you

         11  get resistance to that particular regimen, and he

         12  hasn't found -- the doctors haven't found a

         13  combination yet that was as effective as that

         14  original regimen that he was on and he is losing

         15  weight and his health deteriorating.

         16                 I think it is important for us to

         17  remember that like other forms of bias, police abuse

         18  often perpetrated against disenfranchised

         19  communities, and people that belong to one or more

         20  of these communities often suffer multiple forms of

         21  abuse.

         22                 For example, some of you may read in

         23  the Village Voice that there was a Latino woman, a

         24  transgender, experienced in the Bronx, her mother

         25  and brother and family friend, they were beaten by
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          2  Housing Police in their home.

          3                 The attack was initiated by the

          4  officers' discovery that the woman was

          5  transgendered. Because the family lives in public

          6  housing, and because the family is Latino, the

          7  police undoubtedly expected their actions to go

          8  unchallenged, and this is because the police believe

          9  there is no recourse for disenfranchised people,

         10  including people of color, youth, poor people,

         11  immigrant communities, and the LGDTH communities as

         12  well.

         13                 And institutions that are supposed to

         14  provide recourse, such as the CCRB, are woefully

         15  inadequate, and crime victims should be able to pick

         16  up the phone and call 9-1-1 without having to worry

         17  about getting beaten up or not having to worry about

         18  being revictimized by the police. They have to know

         19  that they should be able to find recourse and what

         20  we have in the City here just doesn't work. Because

         21  we are all aware that it doesn't work, and the

         22  present situations of the CCRB don't work. It should

         23  be the responsibility of agencies like AVP and

         24  bodies such as the City Council to make sure that

         25  the voices of police victims in the City do not go
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          2  unheard, and these hearings are an incredibly

          3  important start of that.

          4                 And thank you for giving people the

          5  opportunity to speak out on this issue.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Can you wait

          8  one second?

          9                 MR. GOEKEN: Certainly.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  The person who

         11  had the resistance to the medication, have those

         12  people proceeded in civil court to sue the City?

         13                 MR. GOEKEN: I hate to sound like a

         14  lawyer, but I am one and I will say I can't comment

         15  on that.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay.

         17                 MR. GOEKEN: He is evaluating his

         18  options.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay, thank

         20  you.

         21                 MR. GOEKEN: Okay.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: The next

         23  speaker is William Harrell. Following William

         24  Harrell is Melissa Sklarz.

         25                 MR. HARRELL: Yes, my name is Wil
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          2  Harrell. I am an attorney for New York National

          3  Lawyers Guild and the Center for Constitutional

          4  Rights, and I have a few announcements and comments.

          5                 The announcement is that CCR has

          6  filed a class action injunctive suit against the

          7  Street Crimes Unit, and if anybody has information

          8  pertaining to them please call us at (212) 614-6454.

          9  It you didn't get that number, there are cards in

         10  the back.

         11                 My understanding, though, is that the

         12  victims under Street Crimes Unit are from the Bronx,

         13  Harlem and Bed Stuy and other communities of color

         14  and other communities not yet a victim of the Street

         15  Crimes Unit.

         16                 The CCR International March on

         17  Washington, anybody can participate in that, that is

         18  going to be Saturday, April the 3rd.

         19                 Finally, I would like to comment that

         20  I think it is encouraging that the City Council is

         21  going around getting these Speakout sessions, having

         22  a special hearing or oversight hearing on the Street

         23  Crimes Unit next week. I hope that real lasting

         24  legislative reforms come of this.

         25                 And I also was encouraged last week
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          2  when the City Council reviewed the police budget.

          3  But buried the solution with one aspect to that, the

          4  police weapons, police officers' salaries, special

          5  equipment and so forth, they do not have to answer

          6  to the amount of money that the City pays, and the

          7  cases like the Diallo case, there is going to be

          8  hundreds of thousands of dollars paid by the

          9  taxpayers for that, but the City Council could not

         10  scrutinize the police in that regard because the

         11  money for civil damages does not come out of the

         12  police budget. And in SanFrancisco and Oakland they

         13  chose this, and so every time the police injures a

         14  citizen and the City pays those damages, they come

         15  directly out of the police budget, whereas the ones

         16  in New York comes out of a general budget. So that

         17  money is coming out of hospitals, schools and so

         18  forth and not just out of the police budget, and the

         19  police should be held accountable. I think the City

         20  Council needs to reevaluate that.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Thank you.

         23                 We have been joined by Council Member

         24  Phil Reed, who is here.

         25                 The next speaker is Melissa Sklarz.
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          2                 MS. SKLARZ: Hi. Good evening. I am

          3  Melissa Sklarz, I am an educator and counselor here

          4  at the Gender Identity Project, and I live in the

          5  neighborhood.

          6                 This is very wonderful to see you all

          7  here. Last week we had a couple of elected

          8  officials, and that is wonderful, it tells me that

          9  our voices are being heard.

         10                 I am not naive, I have been around

         11  the block once, more than once, and we currently

         12  live in a City controlled by a prosecutor,

         13  Republican, and ambitious Republican, and the police

         14  are going to do everything possible for these crime

         15  statistics so it makes Giuliani look swell to

         16  Republicans all across America.

         17                 However, the continued physical and

         18  emotional violence against minorities and gay and

         19  lesbian people and also transgendered people is an

         20  outrage. Last week Council Member Quinn was here,

         21  Council Member Lopez was here, there are a whole

         22  slew of stories of people besides -- I am not here

         23  to promote prostitution, however, I think that as we

         24  continue to educate ourselves as to the different

         25  communities here in the City, that the transgendered
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          2  community is still at the bottom of all of our

          3  social scales, and that the City begins to take this

          4  community seriously. Now, I don't expect the police

          5  to tell the difference between a prostitute and a

          6  corporate executive. They can't in any other aspect,

          7  why would transgendered be any different.

          8                 I challenge the members of our City

          9  Council today to help us market the program to start

         10  educating the police what the transgendered

         11  community is, who they are, what they do, where they

         12  go, what they don't do, so that the transgendered

         13  people who unfortunately falls in the hands of

         14  police are not treated like animals, as they have

         15  been for 25 years.

         16                 This does not seem like a lot, the

         17  City and the Council, who has done so many things

         18  for so many people, I am asking you, let's work

         19  together and create a program. We have no money

         20  because most of us don't work, perhaps the City can

         21  cough up a few dollars from the next budget.

         22                 What I would like to do is, I can't

         23  prevent the police from thinking whatever it is they

         24  think, but at least some kind of protection about

         25  their actions. If they are going to be arresting 18
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          2  year olds and continue all kinds of abuse, at least

          3  you can perhaps put something into effect that can

          4  get them to stop.

          5                 I have 150 ideas off the top of my

          6  had, I won't burden you now with them. I want this

          7  to be a beginning. You know, this is where, last

          8  week was a good start, and I challenge you today,

          9  and along with Carrie Davis and Positive Health

         10  Project, and Transengendered Network and all of

         11  these other groups, and Anti-Violence Project. You

         12  come up with the money, we will come up with the

         13  claims very simple.

         14                 Because as we have seen with the way

         15  our police force continues to treat the City as a

         16  third world nation, there comes a time, at least

         17  this community, it begins to take itself seriously

         18  and we ask, and begin to demand that the City start

         19  taking us seriously.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I know you were

         22  one who organized the meeting last week, which was

         23  really great and I was happy to come to it, would

         24  you be willing to work with me, Council Member

         25  Perkins and others to try to reach out to the
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          2  transgendered community about this issue so we

          3  could, the Delegation, could talk, because I didn't

          4  do enough outreach to that community for this?

          5                 MS. SKLARZ: Sure, yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I have asked

          7  her to do things before, so she is afraid to say

          8  yes.

          9                 MS. SKLARZ: How is Sunday night

         10  between 8:00 and 10:00? No, whatever.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay, so we

         12  will give you a call.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 MS. SKLARZ: If we could work through

         15  the Gender Identity Project, if we can do anything,

         16  that would be perfect.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: All right. So,

         18  I will call.

         19                 MS. SKLARZ: Call Carrie.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Oh, great. We

         21  would love that.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: The next

         23  speaker is Jerina Reich. And after Verina is Karen

         24  Cohen.

         25                 MS. REICH: I want to thank you for
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          2  the opportunity to speak with you.

          3                 One of the things that I think that

          4  we should start focusing in on, is several things:

          5  There is something wrong with our court system and

          6  our legal system, that allowed all of this to go on.

          7  I think if the City Council did some monitoring of

          8  the amount of money that comes out of the budget and

          9  posted it, somehow on New York 1, on CBS News, or

         10  somewhere in the newspaper, post the amount of money

         11  every year spent on paying for the police brutality.

         12  That kind of money. So that people will get an idea

         13  how much it is costing. It is not just people that

         14  you see and saying they probably did something. The

         15  police would make it look like they weren't doing

         16  anything, so show them the dollars and cents.

         17                 All right, the other thing I think is

         18  the training of the police. It turns out to be

         19  sensitivity. I think there has to be a system of

         20  screening to weed out some of the people that apply

         21  for the Police Department, you know, the lack of

         22  education that some of them have in dealing with

         23  people, and in dealing in terms of talking with

         24  people actually. Some of them actually don't know

         25  how to talk to people. I mean, they have a sudden
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          2  eighth grade reading level and they don't know how

          3  to talk to people. So, let there be sort of rules

          4  and regulations.

          5                 And the second, another thing I think

          6  that is something that has to be concretely done, is

          7  about the 48-hour rule. When the next contract comes

          8  up. That is one of the things that I think the City

          9  Council could have a big impact on, when the

         10  contract comes up and that 48-hour rule is in there,

         11  something has to be done about it.

         12                 The other thing is, I think the

         13  rolling Gestapo, I will call them, with the special

         14  forces, plainclothes, calling people yo and you are

         15  supposed to know who they are, this guy said two

         16  people came up to him with a gun, he didn't know who

         17  they were, he thought they were going to die, and it

         18  turned out to be the police, that special forces,

         19  the City Council has to evaluate it.

         20                 And I think it should be disbanded.

         21  Unless it is being properly trained. I think there

         22  needs to be a lot of business.

         23                 The other thing is, the search and

         24  seizure, I think there is about 38,000 people that

         25  have been stopped and searched and so on and so
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          2  forth. I think when you have the hearing, you have

          3  to take a look at that. And what happened to free

          4  speech? Free assembly? You see, the test case was

          5  the Million Youth March, when they have the planes

          6  coming, the helicopters, the horsemen, so I think

          7  when that was not taken seriously by the vast

          8  majority of people, that was a test case.

          9                 And, so, Fifth Avenue is another one.

         10  So, I think we have to ask the City Council to pay

         11  attention to those things, and those are the things

         12  that I think would be some effective things that you

         13  might want to work on.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: The next

         16  speaker is Karen Cohen.

         17                 Did you sign up twice or is there

         18  somebody else? Almost exactly, but for the address

         19  --

         20                 MS. COHEN: I think I signed up twice.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Okay, great.

         22  Because there is one at 221 and one at 223.

         23                 And then the next speaker is Leslie

         24  Jones, and if anyone else would like to speak they

         25  should sign up.
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          2                 MS. COHEN: I just want to make it

          3  short.

          4                 I a victim of crime in New York City.

          5  I was assaulted about three years ago. My

          6  perpetrator has not been arrested, he is still here

          7  in New York City. The precinct has not cooperated

          8  with me. They told me it never happened. I was

          9  hospitalized. I suffered from psychiatric problems,

         10  and because of that they didn't take me seriously.

         11  He robbed me. He robbed my money. He hurt me. And he

         12  is still on the street.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: We have been

         14  joined by Council Member Guillermo Linares, and the

         15  next speaker is Leslie Jones.

         16                 MR. JONES: I am hoping that the City

         17  Council will take into consideration the terminology

         18  to increasing minorities on the police force,

         19  although it will never be the cure-all to the

         20  problems, I am trusting that the City will look

         21  beyond this and increase their education for cops,

         22  both white, black, so there are more minority cops

         23  in minority precincts. Please also concentrate more

         24  on the training that police officers receive,

         25  regardless of their race, regardless of their
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          2  agenda.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Thank you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: While they are

          6  signing in, I will make a couple of announcements.

          7                 I just want to remind everybody about

          8  the Ildo (phonetic) demonstration tomorrow and also

          9  the action at One Police Plaza, Thursday, at 11:30,

         10  12:00. And also that on Monday, March 22nd, at

         11  10:00, the City Council's Public Safety Committee is

         12  having an oversight hearing on the Street Crimes

         13  Unit, and it is really important that we have a

         14  very, very large audience, a lot of people, so the

         15  message gets sent loud and clear.

         16                 It is at City Hall on the second

         17  floor, the Council Chamber.

         18                 SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE: Do you have to

         19  have a special invitation?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: No.

         21                 SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE: Do I need ID

         22  to get in?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: No.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I think they

         25  are requiring ID, unfortunately.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: You should

          3  bring a picture ID, that would be helpful.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: The next

          5  speaker is Ann Northrop.

          6                 MS. NORTHROP: Hi. Well, I will be at

          7  the Ildo thing tomorrow morning as a marshal, and I

          8  will be getting arrested on Thursday at One Police

          9  Plaza, and urge everyone to join me.

         10                 I was at the demonstration last

         11  night. I know you have heard a lot about it, I just

         12  wanted to tell you a couple of things from my point

         13  of view because I was one of the head marshals, one

         14  of the additional negotiators with the police force.

         15                 At the beginning of the demonstration

         16  we gathered at Columbus Circle, we negotiated with

         17  the police. We had been told that we had sound

         18  permits for that march. Chief Pale informed us when

         19  we talked to him yesterday evening, as we negotiated

         20  this, that in fact we were not permitted to use a

         21  sound system anywhere but at Columbus Circle, that

         22  any bullhorns along the route would probably be used

         23  for instructional purposes, not for chanting, that

         24  no other sound system could be used, that no sound

         25  system could be used in Bryant.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            64

          1  MANHATTAN DELEGATION SPEAKOUT

          2                 We argued that we did have sound

          3  permits and for the route of the march and the form

          4  of the march and the size of the march and the route

          5  we would take, and in the midst of this, Chief Pale

          6  looked me straight in the eye and said that we were

          7  disagreeing on something. We are not the enemy. And

          8  I wanted to punch him in the face, I was so angry.

          9  And I am only sorry that I didn't say to him right

         10  then tell it to Amadou Diallo, and any number of

         11  other people we could mention. But as the march

         12  proceeded, peacefully, under control, with no

         13  problems from the marchers, nothing out of line, no

         14  challenge from the police force, we were completely

         15  surrounded, completely enclosed, told every step of

         16  the way what to do, how to act, how to behave,

         17  threatened every single step of the way with arrest

         18  if we were not good little boys and girls and

         19  followed every single directive of the Police

         20  Department. And if we paused for five seconds, to

         21  let stragglers catch up or to express ourselves in

         22  Times Square, we were immediately threatened with

         23  arrest and told to keep moving.

         24                 We had not planned to do that. We had

         25  planned to stop in Times Square, peacefully, and we
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          2  hoped legally, on the recruiting station area, but

          3  it was frankly too threatening to do that, and that

          4  threat was from the police force. It was too cold,

          5  it was too scary.

          6                 And when we did get to Bryant Park

          7  and stopped first in the intersection of Sixth

          8  Avenue, the immediate reaction from Chief Pale,

          9  without listening, without looking, without talking

         10  to those of us who were the head marshals that they

         11  negotiated with along the route, there was immediate

         12  reaction, and I heard this directly from his

         13  mouth,"charge that man with inciting a riot." Just

         14  immediate. And it was only because we stayed

         15  together and strong and insistent that the situation

         16  was not worse.

         17                 I have for the last dozen years tried

         18  to participate in peaceful demonstrations in the

         19  City, and I have seen the police, I have seen Chief

         20  Pale send his officers to beat people off the

         21  demonstrations, sending cops on horseback to charge

         22  in the crowd.

         23                 The police force in this City regards

         24  the people I work with as the enemy to be stopped at

         25  every single moment. You will see that tomorrow at
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          2  the St. Patrick's Day Parade. They will not allow

          3  peaceful demonstrators into the demonstration area,

          4  they will keep people out of demonstrating and that

          5  is where you should be tomorrow morning, is at those

          6  entrances to the library sidewalk, at 47 and 40th,

          7  to make sure the Police Department lets in the

          8  people who want to participate in a peaceful

          9  demonstration.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Thank you.

         12                 Our last speaker is Jay Walker.

         13                 MR. WALKER: I just wanted to add

         14  something. After just sitting here and reading and

         15  listening to everybody speak and listening to your

         16  reactions, we have a State Senator and a

         17  Congressmember getting arrested, we have several

         18  Council members here to show their support to a

         19  community that is constantly, insistently being

         20  brutalized, we have a former Mayor being arrested,

         21  we have got all of the elected officials that

         22  obviously know there is something fundamentally

         23  wrong with what is going on in this City between the

         24  police force and the Mayor. I mean, it is not

         25  something that is entrenched in New York City, it is
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          2  something that has occurred and has increased by

          3  many, many folds, under Mayor Giuliani, under this

          4  police force. And somehow still around the country

          5  people are saying, Mayor Giuliani, he is a really

          6  good guy, he has really lowered the crime rate in

          7  New York. I feel real safe when I go there.

          8                 You know, something is wrong.

          9  Something is not being spoken out, something is

         10  escaping from the confinement of these five

         11  boroughs, and that has got to stop because we have a

         12  responsibility to now allow him to get into the

         13  Senate.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Does anyone

         15  else want to speak?

         16                 MR. SPEDALE: I just want to add

         17  something real quick.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Just state

         19  your name again.

         20                 MR. SPEDALE: Richard Spedale. I just

         21  wanted to add, I hadn't mentioned when I first spoke

         22  to you that after my arrest by the police, at the

         23  Matthew Shepard political funeral, an attorney

         24  happened to be standing there who witnessed these

         25  things happen to me, and he is now representing me,
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          2  he attained my rap sheet from the Police Department,

          3  and I have a rap sheet now, I have never been

          4  arrested before in my life, okay? On my rap sheet it

          5  says that I am felon and that on October 19th, 1998,

          6  the night of the Matthew Shepard political funeral,

          7  that I was a juror receiving a bribe. I neglected to

          8  mention that earlier.

          9                 The Police Department, this hasn't

         10  been taken off of my record, it hasn't been taken

         11  off of my rap sheet, obviously we are fighting that

         12  along with the other charges, I was charged with

         13  resisting arrest, and disorderly conduct.

         14                 Now, I believe that this is another

         15  matter the Police Department used in my case to

         16  intimidate me and dissuade me from ever engaging in

         17  any forum of political activism or street activism.

         18                 I just wanted to make you aware of

         19  that false charge, and use of the Department and

         20  District Attorney's Office in intimidating peaceful

         21  protesting.

         22                 MR. ZAPLEN: I am Ted Zaplen, and I am

         23  here also representing a group called Moving

         24  Equipment Queer Harm Reduction Collective. I really

         25  wanted to speak about my experience as a gay man in
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          2  New York City, and I would like to speak of my

          3  experience as an HIV prevention outreach worker in

          4  New York City. And the work that I do is providing

          5  syringes to injection drug users, and the stories

          6  that I have heard from people on harassments by the

          7  teens in the street, the stories I have heard have

          8  included people accessing needle exchanges being

          9  searched for syringes, having syringes dumped into

         10  gutters and sewers, being arrested for possession of

         11  syringes even know they are in possession of a

         12  permit that permits them under New York State Health

         13  Regulation to have these syringes on them.

         14                 I have talked to people who are in

         15  drug treatment programs, who are harassed coming out

         16  of the drug treatment programs with their methadone

         17  dose for the weekend, who have had their methadone

         18  dumped into the streets or having them thrown into

         19  the trash, who have been arrested for having empty

         20  bottles of methadone with them, for when they are

         21  out in public and they have to take their meds, they

         22  are not allowed to carry that empty bottle home, so

         23  that they don't get caught throwing it away or

         24  identified with it.

         25                 I talked to sex street workers and
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          2  injective drug users who are not, no longer using,

          3  no longer working the streets, who do outreach work,

          4  who still get harassed by the cops who remember them

          5  from when they were sex street workers or drug

          6  users, and continuing to harass them, preventing

          7  them from doing their outreach work and bringing

          8  people into drug treatment centers, needle exchanges

          9  and such.

         10                 And I have also talked to a lot of

         11  young sex street workers and young kids of color in

         12  this City and what is really surprising is, is these

         13  people have developed a network, where they notify

         14  each other on the streets of when a police presence

         15  is heavy in a neighborhood that they are going to be

         16  in, and they warn each other not to go out tonight,

         17  don't go to that area. They set up other places to

         18  meet and hang out because the police presence of

         19  where they want to go and the harassment that they

         20  are going to receive is not worth going out, and

         21  they don't feel safe in this City anymore. I frankly

         22  don't feel safe in this City anymore either when I

         23  step out my door, because I don't know who is

         24  protecting and who is not.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Before we
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          2  finish, I just want to make an announcement. I want

          3  to remind people here that if you are going to

          4  participate in the civil disobedience on Thursday in

          5  some of the precincts, if you have a prior ACD,

          6  summons standing, a summons that you didn't vacate

          7  before, or you were arrested six months ago, my

          8  recommendation is be aware that if you go and get

          9  arrested, they will keep you. They are not going to

         10  let you go with a desk appearance ticket. That was

         11  done yesterday to us, there were two people in there

         12  that had that situation, one of them was resolved,

         13  the other one was detained overnight until the next

         14  day. Then unless you are willing to go through the

         15  system, and spend the whole night and the whole next

         16  day in there, you go there and make the decision.

         17  But if you are not, make sure that you don't go and

         18  get arrested again, because they are not going to

         19  let you out.

         20                 And the second thing I want to say is

         21  that make sure you bring an ID with a photograph on

         22  you. If it is not an ID like that, it is not going

         23  to be helpful to you and you are also going to be

         24  kept overnight.

         25                 That's it. Thank you.
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          2                 MR. ZAPLEN: Can I ask a question?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Sure.

          4                 MR. ZAPLEN: The slow pace of the

          5  Diallo case is extremely corrosive to goodwill of

          6  New York City, and I wonder if any of you could just

          7  summarize briefly what is happening? What are the

          8  cops doing to get their stories straight? What

          9  actually is happening now?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Well, the

         11  Bronx DA has the deed of a grand jury hearing it,

         12  and as long as the grand jury is hearing it, it is a

         13  grand jury process that allows everyone to say well

         14  there is a grand jury, they can't do anything about

         15  it, and the grand jury I think adjourned just last

         16  week, and it is expected now, I think the grand jury

         17  itself goes out of business the end of March unless

         18  it gets extended. So, it is thought that it will

         19  reconvene and come up with some kind of decision by

         20  the end of this month.

         21                 The timing is very interesting,

         22  because the Louima trial, with those cops, starts at

         23  the end of March, and that will be another terrible

         24  experience for everybody to go through. That's what

         25  it is now. So everybody can say, well, it's a grand
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          2  jury so we can't do anything.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I think that to

          4  support some of that, I mean, a lot of us are

          5  frustrated and it is a difficult process. There is

          6  an army called the Council of Rights and Rights of

          7  Democrats, which is just exactly what it says it is,

          8  and we had a large discussion about this on

          9  Saturday. One feeling that has come out of that

         10  Council, is that we have a lot of confidence in the

         11  District Attorney in the Bronx, Robert Johnson, if

         12  you remember is the one that the Mayor called an

         13  idiot, Pataki said he is incompetent because he

         14  couldn't do this so we should take these cases away

         15  from him, and he is certainly not a stooge by any

         16  measure. Part of the reason, it is our

         17  understanding, we had a long explanation about some

         18  of the attorneys on Saturday, is that the FBI has

         19  been   called in by the District Attorney's Office

         20  to try to recreate the crime scene so they can do

         21  some evaluation that the New York City Police

         22  Department doesn't have the ability to do that and

         23  whether they should be doing that in this particular

         24  case is another story, so that is part of it.

         25                 The frustration still remains. We
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          2  have a lot of confidence in what Robert Johnson, the

          3  District Attorney, is trying to do up there, so that

          4  we should at least be supportive of him in the short

          5  run, until we establish what had happened.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: You can

          7  always say that, and there are always good and bad

          8  things about DAs, I don't think he is up to any bad,

          9  and he certainly is not working with the Mayor.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Right.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: On the other

         12  hand, he is trying this young woman Tabatha Waldrin

         13  whose baby died--

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I am just

         15  talking about this case.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: All right.

         17  Okay.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Anything else?

         19                 MR. ZAPLEN: Thank you.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I want to thank

         21  everybody for coming. And you can please sign in and

         22  we will be able to get you copies of what transpired

         23  and other hearings and other events.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 (Hearing concluded at 9:00 p.m.)
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